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Annual General Meeting  
 

Saturday 20 th  November 2010 at 

Mt Wilson Village Hall  

 

PUT THIS DATE IN YOUR DIARIES 
 

Contents 
 

Images from Then....................................1, 10-12 
 

0ÒÅÓÉÄÅÎÔȭÓ 2ÅÐÏÒÔȢȢȢȢȢ......................................2-3 
 

Autumn Market Weekend...................................3 
 

Honorary Life Membership.................................4 
 

A Brand New Journal (BMACHO)........................4 
 

Early Days of Campanella.....................5-9, 13-15 
 

New Books........................................................16 
 

The Story of Irvineholme..............................16-17 
 

Historical Research Report...........................17-19 
 

Objectives of the Society...................................20 
 

A Word from the Editor.....................................20 
 
 
    

The Presidentôs Report 
 

Welcome to the Societyôs September Newsletter.  

The Societyôs mid-year General Meeting was held in the 
Mt Wilson Village Hall on Saturday 31st July. It was a cold 
and sunny day and there was a good attendance. The 
business side of the meeting received reports on recent 
committee work on the Societyôs collection policy, as well 
as financial and research reports. Our guest speaker was 
Prof Ian Jack, who presented an illustrated talk on the 
origins and development of the Kurrajong Heights 
property Fernmount. This was once the home of the 

Reverend William Scott (1825-1917), the first 
Government/Colonial Astronomer to be appointed at 
Sydney Observatory in 1856. Ianôs talk will be published 
separately in the coming months. 
 

During the first half of this year the Management 
Committee reviewed the Societyôs current collection 
policy and we agreed to adopt a number of changes with 
the aim of making the acquisition, storage, display and  
de-accessioning of material more manageable given our limited financial resources and storage facilities.  

In general the Societyôs collection policy is a guide to how the Society acquires, rejects and disposes of material 
that is on offer to, or held by, the Society. The collection policy is our chief tool for making decisions about our 
current and potential collections. The Society holds a superb collection of material including drawings, letters, 
maps, manuscripts and photographs. This archival material forms the bulk of the collection, there being very little 
in the way of three-dimensional artefacts.  

As we do not have proper storage facilities, the Committee agreed that the Society would concentrate on archival 
material and not actively collect the larger, three-dimensional items. The Committee also agreed that it would 
purchase material of outstanding significance to the communities of Mt Wilson and Mt Irvine, but only consider 
such items if the Societyôs financial status warranted the purchase. 

By now you may be wondering how the Society acquires material for its collection. In fact the Management 
Committee is also the Societyôs Acquisitions Committee. Items for acquisition are considered by the Committee 
and a decision to acquire or reject material is made at a committee meeting. The best way to have a potential item 
considered for acquisition is to contact a member(s) of the Management Committee. 

Another important policy decision was made in regard to the awarding of Honorary Life Memberships. As many 
of you would know, Honorary Life Membership (as opposed to Life Membership) is the highest award bestowed 
by the Society upon an individual who is deemed to have attained an outstanding record of achievement in their 
work on behalf of the Society. The Committee considered: the steps required for nominating an individual for the 
award; determining an award; and the production of and times available for presenting the certificate. Iôm pleased 
to say that the new procedures for Honorary Life Membership were recently put into practice when the 
outstanding contributions of Arthur Delbridge and Bruce Wright were recognised by their admission to Honorary 
Life Membership at the mid-year meeting. 

Our Community Market Weekend, which is our major fundraising activity for the year, was held at the Village 
Hall precinct over the weekend of the 24th and 25th April. Our gross income was $4,524.85, with expenses of 
$591.68. We rented out 23 tables, with food sales and other income about even. The Society is keen to plan for an 
even larger event for next year as Easter and Anzac Day occur at the same time.  

We have already had 250 visitors to the 
Turkish Bath Museum this year and the 
Sydney Restoration Company is currently 
installing its new galvanised iron roof 
(details mentioned in a previous 
Newsletter). 
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The Society maintains a healthy 
financial status. The main 
points, as at 31st July 2010, are: 
  

Operating account: $28,900 
Term deposit: $21,334 
Fundraising account: $1,918 
  

TOTAL: $52,118 
 
Turkish Bath Museum roof 
replacement (our share): 
$16,000 
 

BALANCE: $36,000              
  
Thank you to all the volunteers 
who put in time during the 
Market Weekend and at the 
Turkish Bath Museum, and to 
the Management Committee 
who have worked hard on various projects for the benefit of us all. It has been another successful half year for our 
Society and I note that there is much for you to enjoy in this Newsletter. 

- Des Barrett, President               

Autumn Market Weekend  
 
As Des has mentioned, the 
annual community market 
held in April was again a 
successful and enjoyable 
event. Visitors stream to 
Mt Wilson at this time of 
year to see the autumn 
foliage. All the open 
gardens are supported by 
the marketing strategies we 
use and serving food-on-
the-run at the Village hall 
complements the more 
leisurely service available 
at Chimney Cottage 
Heritage Café.  
 
The planning committee 
will be meeting in 
September to consider 
putting on a similar event 
in 2011. The prospect of Easter 
and Anzac Day both falling on 
the same weekend in April is 
rather daunting! Although this 
will be a peak time for visitors, 
many of our volunteer helpers 
may be involved with family 
events. Should we change the 
dates? We welcome comments 
on any aspect of this important 
fundraising event. 
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A Brand New Journal  

 

Honorary Life Membership  
 

Arthur Delbridge and Bruce Wright were honoured at the recent General Meeting with Honorary Life 
Memberships. Darrel Conybeare was on hand to present Arthur with his handsome framed certificate and read the 
following citation:  

 

The Mt Wilson & Mt Irvine Histo rical Society Inc. 

confers 

Honorary Life Membership  

upon 

Arthur Delbridge  
 

In recognition and appreciation of his  

many years of dedicated support for the founding 

and continued development of the Society. 
 

His leadership and direction over several years set 

the Society's standing in the community, ensured the 

preservation of significant heritage sites and 

established regular avenues for wide distribution of 

important historical information. 
 

Bruce Wright was unfortunately not able to be at the 
meeting to receive his award as he is now living in 
Western Australia. However, Mary Reynolds spoke warmly of his many contributions to the 
development of the Society and the Turkish Bath Museum over the first 10 years and then read the 
citation from Bruce's award:  
 

The Mt Wilson & Mt Irvine 

Historical Society Inc.  

confers 

Honorary Life Membership  

upon 

Bruce Wright  
 

In recognition and 

appreciation of his many 

years of dedicated support 

for the restoration and 

establishment of the Turkish 

Bath Museum. 
 

His professional skill and 

commitment to 

archaeological research and 

development at the Turkish 

Bath building and precinct 

and to the administration of 

the Society in its early years 

were invaluable.  
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Matthew Henry Stephen 

(1828-1920), known as Sinny by 
his family, was born in Tasmania 
and attended school in Hobart and 
then at Sydney College (later 
named Sydney Grammar School). 
To follow his studies in law he 
went to England and then returned 
to Australia in 1853.1  
 

Matthew was the third son of 
Sir Alfred Stephen, the Chief 

Justice of NSW (1802-1894), and 
ghr ehqrs vhed+ Uhqfhmh`- Rhq @keqdc­r 
sister, Marianne, was married to 

Henry Shadforth of Ravenswood, Mulgoa. Their daughter, Caroline, was attracted to Matthew but uncertain 
of marrying a cousin.2 She eventually overcame her concerns and they wed in 1854.  

 

Matthew (below) g`c addm `clhssdc sn sgd A`q hm 084/- Gd v`r cdrbqhadc `r ` ¬bntqsdntr+ `bbtq`sd `mc 
o`hmrs`jhmf k`vxdq­-3 In time he became entitled to the suffixes QC and KC. In 1887 he was appointed to the 
bench of the Supreme Court by Sir Henry Parkes and from June 1902 to February 1904 he was Acting Chief 
Justice of NSW. In the NSW Parliament he represented Mudgee in the NSW Legislative Assembly from 

1869 to 1871.4 A sac mnsd hm L`ssgdv `mc B`qnkhmd­r khed v`r sgd knrr ne 
their children with only one, Lina, surviving.5 

 

Although Matthew had a home at Sutton Forest (NSW) as well as 
Glen Ayr on Glenmore Road in Sydney, he along with his father and two 
brothers, Septimus Alfred and Ernest Farish, purchased portions in Mt 
Wilson following the construction of the Mt Wilson Platform in May 
1875.6

 
The arrival of the railway from Mt Victoria down to Bowenfels and 

Lithgow played a major role in influencing interest in land at Mt Wilson 
once the Mt Wilson Platform was built. This occurred very much at the 
urging of ES Wyndham, the surveyor of Mt Wilson, to John Whitton, 
chief engineer and designer of the zig zag to Lithgow.7

 
 

 

Sir Alfred, Septimus and Ernest purchased Portions 26, 34, 43, 45, 
47 and 53 and Matthew purchased Lot 40. Matthew was the only Stephen 
to build in Mt Wilson. Sir Alfred was offered land between Faulconbridge 
and Linden by Sir James Martin, the then Premier of NSW. He found this 

location more readily reachable by train and built his country home, Alphington,8 here. He sold his portion 
(34) in Mt Wilson as did Ernest and Septimus.  

 

                                                 
1
  Ruth Bedford, 1954, Think of Stephen: A family chronicle, Angus & Robertson, Sydney. 

2
  Ibid. 

3
  E Rich & Co., 1906, The Quarterly Magazine, p. 70. 

4
  2006, Australian Dictionary of Biography, ANU, Canberra. 

5
  Ruth Bedford, 1954, Think of Stephen. 

6
  CH Currey, 1968, Mt Wilson, New South Wales: Its location, settlement and development, Angus & Robertson, 

Sydney. 
7
  Ibid. 

8
  1897, The railway guide of NSW. 

Early days of Campanella  
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 Portion 40, consisting of over 10 acres, was signed by the 
Governor of NSW and purchased on 17 June 1875 by Matthew 
for 21 pounds 7 shillings and 9 pence.9 Its location is at the 
corner of Davies Lane and Mt Irvine Rd, opposite Wynstay 
paddocks. Jesse Gregson records in his diary10 that Judge 
Stephen was a resident of Mt Wilson in 1878. This suggests that 
Campanella was built soon after Lot 40 was purchased.  

 

Over the years the name Campanella has intrigued people. 
Luigi Strano claimed that there was a connection with 
Tommaso Campanella, a Dominican priest and philosopher of 
the 16th and 17th centuries. Another possibility is a musical 
connection with Franz Listz who wrote La Campanella (the 
little bell) in 1838; a piano etude borrowed from the final 
lnudldms ne O`f`mhmh­r Uhnkhm Bnmbdqsn Mn- 1 hm A Lhmnq- 
Qd`chmf sgd qdbnqcr ne sgd Rsdogdm e`lhkx hm Qtsg Adcenqc­r 
Think of Stephen one is struck by what a significant role music 
played in their lives.  

 

Campanella was described as one of the larger residences 
of Mt Wilson.11 It was a single storey timber house with a low-pitched spreading roof and symmetrical 
chimneys. The back section overlooked the gardens to the south. A veranda occupied two sides and rooms 
were added to the corners. It has been recorded that: 

 

The roof of the main part of the house was resolved by inserting a box gutter between two smaller pitches off 
the main pitch of the front part of the house. This method had been used in the earliest colonial architecture 
where methods of spanning larger spaces did not go beyond the reasonable lengths of timbers available. 
From this arrangement, a second, lower ridge line (with the roof at the same slope as the main roof) 
indicated a narrowing of the wing that was thus covered. This wing on the west side of the house was 
oqna`akx sgd jhsbgdm `mc rdqu`msr­ pt`qsdqr `r ` 078/ ognsnfq`og hmchb`sdr ` rstqcx aqhbj ektd eqnl ` onrhshnm 
aligned with the west wall and approximately half-way down its length.12 
 

Campanella was built on the highest point of the Lot and approached by a flight of masonry steps without 
handrails.13 Lot 40 was sloping with an outlook towards Mt Tomah, Mt Bell and Mt Hay to the south. 
Matthew Stephen constructed terraced gardens and rolling lawns with the occasional tree ferns, pines and 
rhododendrons. It has also been written that:  

 

The house followed closely the accepted pattern of floor plans of the day. With few restrictions on how one 
was to build on the Mount, it would have been easy to employ a builder with a general knowledge of 
planning requirements and have him construct the house. Most likely Campanella was completed this way.14 
 

It seems that visitors to Campanella were warmly welcomed. Anecdotal evidence suggests that Matthew 
Stephen entertained his friends under the shade of the veranda in the enclosed yard with its outlook to the 
mountain15 `mc ¬L`rsdqr `mc Lhrsqdrrdr lhmfkdc vhsg sgdhq dloknxddr hm xd nkcd Dmfkhrg e`rghnm­-16 It is very 

                                                 
9
  Land title, Mt Wilson & Mt Irvine Historical Society archives. 

10
 Copy in Societyôs archives, original in Mitchell Library. 

11
 CH Currey, 1968, Mt Wilson, New South Wales. 

12
 E Gregson & G Hughes, 1955, The Story of Mount Wilson in the Blue Mountains of NSW (1

st
 edn). 

13
 H Fraser, B James and A Mack, 1969, The settlement of Mount Wilson, BArch thesis, University of NSW. The Mt 

Wilson & Mt Irvine Historical Society received a copy of this thesis from WH Smart. As it was in a fragile state the 

main text was typed up by Leith Conybeare. The Society was able to have the photos copied in the late 1990s. 
14

 H Fraser, B James & A Mack, 1969, The settlement of Mount Wilson, p. 42.  
15

 Ibid. 
16

 CH Currey, 1968, Mount Wilson, New South Wales, p. 54. 
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likely that one of the employees would have been Mary Marceau who was to marry Sydney Kirk in 1887 in 
Mt Victoria (image on opposite page17). Probably Sydney himself attended these social occasions held 
traditionally in the summer.  

  

Those who built in Mt Wilson between about 1878 and 1882 usually arrived in November and departed 
in early April. Mt Wilson was a part of a custom in the 19th century by which those with wealth moved in the 
summer to cooler mountain areas or Hill Stations²a name inherited from Anglo Indians who had moved to 
Australia in the middle to late 19th century.18 The completion of a railway across the Blue Mountains in the 
1860s allowed these people access to such places, even the more remote Mt Wilson.  

 

In the land title documents for Portion 40, the Hon. Judge MH Stephen gave power of attorney to 
Edward G Dawes, a Sydney solicitor, in 1895. A detailed article by the late Harold B Morley of Mt Irvine 
recently came to the Society through his daughter Helen Naylor. It contains references to Campanella. Harold 
Morley mentions that in 1897 the Rev. Howdkk Oqhbd cdrbqhadc sgd dwhrsdmbd ne ¬dwsqdldkx qhbg q`hmenqdrs nq 
fh`ms aqtrg bntmsqx­ ats vntkc mns qdud`k sgd knb`khsx- @s sgd shld+ sgd Qdu- Oqhbd v`r kd`rhmf Campanella 
from Matthew with the option to purchase.19 

 

In 1898 Matthew sold Campanella to Ingm Inrgt`+ ` ¬fdmskdl`m­ eqnl Rxcmdx- Harold Morley speaks of 
Mr Joshua kindly allowing him and BK Brown to put their gear in the sheds of Campanella after getting to 
Mt Wilson from the railway before reaching Mt Irvine by pack horse.20 I imagine the year would have been 
1898. John Joshua receives further attention in a 1912 article in the Lithgow Mercury when a tourist records a 
visit to Mt Wilson: 

 

Nm kd`uhmf ®X`qq`v` Kncfd¯ [Wynstay], the visitor proceeded along the Mount Irvine road for about half-a-
lhkd+ vgdm sgd vghsd dmsq`mbd f`sdr sn ®B`lo`mdkk`¯+ Lq Inrgt`­r oqdssx gnldrsd`c b`ld hm uhdv- Sghr v`r 
formerly the property of Judge Stephens, and came into possession of the present proprietor some fourteen 
years ago. About that time Mr Joshua was looking for a property in this district and had an admiring eye on 
Eskroy Park, Marrangaroo, then the residence of Mr William Sandford. However circumstances occurred 
which altered his plans and Mount Wilson was the choice. The site of the villa is an ideal one, situated on the 
crown of the ridge. The front of the house has a south-easterly aspect, and from the broad verandah, which is 
nicely elevated maybe traced the railway line practically from Bell to beyond Springwood. On dark nights the 
reflections of Sydney lights are plainly visible. Between this ridge and the one along which the railway passes 
are numerous prominent crags and bluffs, while verdant Mount Tomah stands out in the east. Away south as 
far as the eye can reach, may be seen a mountain range said to be in the vicinity of Bowral, some 70 or 80 
miles distant. Such a panorama about which columns could easily be written, must be seen to be appreciated. 
A pathway leading to the rear portion of the premises brings the visitor to a natural look-out, which opens to 
the vision a majestic landscape far to the north. In this direction too, the scene finds its horizon in a mountain 
range near Mudgee, not a hill obstructing the view for quite 80 miles. 

 
For those who admire the sublime and romantic in nature, it would be difficult to find a better coign of 
u`ms`fd- Sgd hmsdqhnq ne Lq Inrgt`­r uhkk` hr pthsd hm jddohmf vhsg sgd `qshrshb fqntmcr- Eqnl hsr v`kkr g`mf 
several rare and valuable paintings, the exclusive points of which the owner takes pride in showing the visitor. 
Gnrohs`khsx hr ` oqnmntmbdc ed`stqd `s ®B`lo`mdkk`¯ vghkd bnmudqr`shnm vhsg ` ltbg-traveled and experienced 
man of affairs such as Mr Joshua, was responsible for the quick flight of a pleasant hour or two. Little Eva - 
so gentle, unselfish and graceful - acted as hostess in a manner that betokened an exceptionally generous 
nature.21 
 

 

                                                 
17

 Image donated to the Mt Wilson & Mt Irvine Historical Society by Sue and Mark Austin. 
18

 Andrea Scott Inglis, 2007, Summer in the Hills: The nineteenth-century mountain resort in Australia, Australian 

Scholarly Publishing, Melbourne. 
19

 HB Morley, 1950, The story of Irvineholme, unpublished. 
20

 Ibid. 
21

 Anonymous, 1 January 1912, Impressions of Mount Wilson. Lithgow Mercury, No. 3. 
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